
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

Cabinet Member for Highways, 
Transport and Economic Growth 
Decisions 
 

 
 

Date and Time 
 
Tuesday, 27 
February 2024 
11.00 am 

Place 
 
Woodhatch Place, 11 
Cockshot Hill, 
Reigate 

Contact 
 
Joss Butler 
Joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk 

Web: 
 
Council and 
democracy 
Surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

 
 

 

 
Cabinet Member: 

Matt Furniss 
 

 
 

 
If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format, e.g. large 

print or braille, or another language, please email Joss Butler on 
Joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. 

 
This meeting will be held in public at the venue mentioned above and may be webcast live.  
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the meeting room 
and using the public seating area or attending online, you are consenting to being filmed 
and recorded, and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes. If webcast, a recording will be available on the 
Council’s website post-meeting. The live webcast and recording can be accessed via the 
Council’s website: 

https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
If you would like to attend and you have any special requirements, please email Joss Butler 

on Joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. Please note that public seating is limited and will be 
allocated on a first come first served basis. 

 

 

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

AGENDA 
 

1   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 

meeting or as soon as possible thereafter  

i. Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  
ii. Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of 

any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 
 

NOTES: 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

• As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, 
of which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s 
spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is 
living as a spouse or civil partner) 

• Members with a significant personal interest may participate in 
the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could 
be reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

2   PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
 

 

a   MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 
The deadline for Members’ questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (21 February 2024). 
 

 

b   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (20 
February 2024). 
 

 

3   PETITION: STOP THE CLOSURE OF THE RIGHT TURN AT THE 
BOTTOM OF 7 HILLS ROAD IN COBHAM 
 
One petition has been received requesting Surrey County Council to 
allow the junction with 7 Hills Road and Byfleet Road to keep its right 
turn once the M25J10 works are completed.  
 
829 people signed this petition. 
 
Full details and the petition response are attached.  
 

(Pages 
5 - 12) 

 
 

Leigh Whitehouse 
Interim Chief Executive 

Published: 19 February 2024



 

 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 
Members of the public and the press may use social media or mobile devices in silent 
mode during meetings.  Public Wi-Fi is available; please ask the committee manager for 
details.  
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at Council meetings.  Please liaise 
with the committee manager prior to the start of the meeting so that the meeting can be 
made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
The use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is 
subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to any Council 
equipment or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile 
devices to be switched off in these circumstances. 
 
 
Thank you for your co-operation. 

 

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
Cabinet and most committees will consider questions by elected Surrey County Council 
Members and questions and petitions from members of the public who are electors in the 
Surrey County Council area.  
 
Please note the following regarding questions from the public: 
 
1. Members of the public can submit one written question to a meeting by the deadline 

stated in the agenda. Questions should relate to general policy and not to detail. 
Questions are asked and answered in public and cannot relate to “confidential” or 
“exempt” matters (for example, personal or financial details of an individual); for further 
advice please contact the committee manager listed on the front page of an agenda.  

2. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed six. 
Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following meeting 
or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion.  

3. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received.  
4. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Chairman or Cabinet 

members may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or nominate another 
Member to answer the question.  

5. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the questioner. 
The Chairman or Cabinet members may decline to answer a supplementary question. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth Decisions 
 
27 February 2024 
 
Title: Stop the closure of the Right turn at the bottom of 7 Hills Road in Cobham 
 
Statement:  
 
We the undersigned petition Surrey County Council to Allow the junction with 7 Hills Road and 
Byfleet Road to keep its right turn once the M25J10 works are completed -the Highways 
scheme never included this closure it was requested by Surrey CC without consultation or even 
advising local residents. 
 
Justification:  
 
Surrey CC should reverse their decision and keep both right and left turns at the end of 7 Hills 
Road.  
 
Submitted by: Julia Lindon-Travers 
 
RESPONSE:  
 
The response to this petition sets out: 
 
1 The need for the proposed change for a left only turn from Seven Hills Road North 
2 Inclusion in the National Highways scheme and traffic assessment 
3 The Consultation Undertaken 
4 The views of the Secretary of State 
5 Summary 
6 Next Steps 

 
1 The need for the proposed change for a left only turn from Seven Hills Road North 
 
The need for the proposed change for a left turn only from Seven Hills Road North is as a direct 
result of the impacts from the M25 Junction 10 / A3 Wisley interchange project.  These impacts 
and potential mitigation were identified during the Development Consent Order (DCO) process. 
The DCO is the process whereby National Highways secured Secretary of State for Transport 
permission to construct the scheme, following the consultation processes. 

 
The elements of the M25 Junction 10 scheme that impact on the A245/B365 Seven Hills 
junction are: 

 
(i) Changes to the A3 northbound off slip to address road safety issues on the A3, 
(ii) Closing side road accesses from the A3 and re-routing these on a new link road 

connecting into Seven Hills South, 
(iii) New pedestrian cycle routes linking to the A245/B365 Seven Hills junction along the 

A245 from Painshill Roundabout and parallel to the A3 which then link into Seven Hills 
South. 

 

Page 5

Item 3



 

(i) Changes to the A3 northbound off slip to address road safety issues on the A3 
 

There is an existing road safety issue on the A3 that traffic on the A3 northbound off slip 
queues back on the main A3, This is a significant road safety issue and one of the main 
objectives that the M25 Junction 10 scheme was approved to resolve. 

 
To address this issue the scheme includes widening both the A3 off slip and the A245 
westbound from the Painshill Roundabout to the A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction. This 
results in traffic from the A3 arriving sooner and at higher speeds onto the A245 towards the 
A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction. Therefore to improve road safety the current central 
reserve gap allowing the right turn into Feltonfleet school is to be closed and a new access 
to Feltonfleet School provided from Seven Hills Road South (see extract of the proposed 
new layout below). 
 

 
 
This additional volume of traffic onto the A245 also creates a need to reduce the 
consequential queuing at the A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction and the associated risk 
of high speed traffic from the A3 encountering this queuing.  

 

Page 6



To mitigate this impact modifications to the A245/B365 Seven Hills junction were identified. 
This included a left turn only from Seven Hills North as this will remove a stage from the 
traffic signals and as a result increase the capacity and reduce the queues.   A lower speed 
limit from 70mph to 40mph is also being implemented.  
 
Traffic modelling showed that removing the right and ahead turn movements from Seven 
Hills Road North to A245 would increase capacity at the junction, and as these movements 
were a small proportion of the overall vehicle numbers this left only turn would provide a 
much wider overall benefit.  
 

  

Page 7



(ii) Closing accesses from the A3 and re-routing these on a new link connecting 
into Seven Hills South 

 
A further issue that the M25 Junction 10 / A3 scheme addresses is the road safety issue 
arising from the number of side access roads off/onto the A3 serving  the San Domenico / 
Starbucks site and several residential properties.  
 
To address this, the project closes off these accesses and reroute them via a separate 
private access road parallel to the A3 which links into Seven Hills South.  
 
Again for road safety reasons the existing central reserve gap on the A245 to access 
Feltonfleet school is also being closed, and rerouted into a new road which again links into 
Seven Hills South.  
 
These road safety changes increase the traffic flows/volumes and drive a need to improve 
the capacity of the A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction. Therefore, again by providing the 
left turn only out of Seven Hills North, capacity improvements can be achieved at the Seven 
Hills junction to accommodate this additional traffic. 

 
(iii) New cycle routes linking to the A245/B365 Seven Hills junction along the A245 

from Painshill Roundabout and parallel to the A3 which then link into Seven 
Hills South 

 
A further road safety objective of the M25 Junction 10 scheme is to ban cycling on the 
widened A3 and instead provide new pedestrian and cycle routes linking to the A245/B365 
Seven Hills junction along the A245 from Painshill Roundabout and parallel to the A3 which 
then link into Seven Hills South. 
 
These cycle routes would also link into existing and planned future Surrey County Council 
pedestrian and cycle routes in the area and along Seven Hills Road North to provide a 
coherent and joined up cycle network.  
 
As such National Highways have additional funding to design and implement a crossing 
across the A245 and provide a safe north-south pedestrian/cycle crossing across the A245 
and to Feltonfleet school and as such would not need to be funded by Surrey County 
Council.  
 
This crossing would make it safe for pedestrians and cyclists who wish to cross the A245 
and increase sustainable travel options by encouraging people to walk and cycle.  
 
Cyclists who may be travelling along Seven Hills Road North instead of using the off road 
facility will have the opportunity to dismount and use the proposed pedestrian/cycle crossing 
facilities to continue their journey if they are going west on Byfleet Road or south towards 
the new M25 Junction 10 facilities beyond Seven Hills South.  
 
This pedestrian/cycle crossing is currently being designed by National Highways but as the 
crossing will need to be incorporated into the traffic signal stages/hold some traffic 
movements when pedestrians and cyclists activate the costing it will need the improved 
capacity at the junction, which can only be provided by, a left turn only out of Seven Hills 
Road North. 
 
National Highways consultants are currently designing the crossing and therefore a 

decision is sought whether to progress with the crossing which can be provided with 

the left turn only which provides the capacity for the crossing or whether to not 

Page 8



provide the crossing and allow the higher capacity for vehicles with just the left turn 

only. 

2 Inclusion in the National Highways scheme and traffic assessment 
 
For the operational and safety reasons stated above, National Highways, presented this change 
to the junction in the Legal Development Consent Order, and the associated documents, which 
was approved by the Secretary of State for Transport. 
 
A disbenefit of a left turn only from Seven Hills Road North is that traffic wishing to travel west 
towards Byfleet out of Seven Hills Road North would have to travel extra distance.   
 
The traffic modelling indicates that those drivers with an origin and/or destination close to the 
A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction will continue to use the A245/B365 Seven Hills Road 
junction, and this will involve travelling an additional relatively short distance (less than 1 mile) 
to U-Turn at the Painshill Roundabout to then travel in the direction of Byfleet. However, traffic 
from Seven Hills North wishing to make this manoeuvre are a small proportion of the overall 
vehicle numbers at the junction.   
 
Although the model is showing the additional travel time could be up to nearly 2½ minutes 
longer at certain times, it is indicating that at other times of the day journey times will be quicker; 
this is because when the junction just permits the left turn out of Seven Hills Road North it is 
operating more efficiently than compared with accommodating the right turn manoeuvre as well. 
 
For those drivers with origins and destinations further away, the traffic model suggests they will 
choose to reroute and avoid the junction altogether.  However if the right turn is permitted the 
junction would operate less efficiently and with reduced capacity means that drivers would also 
choose to use alternative routes.   
 
In addition improvements are to be made to both the road markings and traffic signal vehicle 
detection at the Painshill Roundabout to improve and manage the flow of traffic using this 
junction.   
 
Therefore it is considered that this left only turn would provide a much wider overall benefit to 
the highway network in terms of both road safety and traffic capacity. 
 
3 The Consultation Undertaken 
 
The consultation for the M25 Junction 10 A3 Wisley Interchange scheme, including changes to 
Surrey County Council’s road network was undertaken by National Highways as the promotor of 
the scheme as they all formed part of the M25 Junction 10 DCO proposals.  
 
This consultation included various public consultations and a wide range of organisations 
including Surrey County Council as the Highway Authority for the Local Road Network (such as 
A245). 
 
National Highways have advised that they consulted significantly on the M25 Junction 10 
project throughout the development of the scheme. Initially, proposals for the entirety of the M25 
Junction 10 scheme were consulted at the beginning of 2018, resulting in some 2000 
responses. During the development of the scheme in 2018, Surrey County Council identified the 
potential impact on the  A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction, as a direct result of the M25 
Junction 10 scheme.   
 
To address these impacts Surrey County Council, in response to the consultation, requested 
that National Highways improve the overall capacity at the junction. The left turn only option was 
identified and assessed and resulted in an overall benefit to the highway network in terms of 

Page 9



both road safety and traffic capacity.  National Highways therefore incorporated this mitigation 
within the M25 junction 10 scheme and included this in their consultations. 
 
National Highways have also confirmed that they undertook a further consultation between 3rd 
April 2019 and 3rd May 2019 and included reference to the proposed Seven Hills junction 
changes. This design was also the subject of the DCO examination in public by the Planning 
Inspectorate of the National Highways DCO application. The Development Consent Order 
(DCO) examination process was widely publicised, and any interested party was invited to 
submit representations from 6th September 2019. The examination itself lasted for 8 months 
between 12th November 2019 to 12th July 2020 and was available for anyone to submit written 
or verbal material. 
 
National Highways also undertook post DCO award public information events in June 2022 and 
used an engagement van to raise awareness of the scheme with events during late June in 
Guildford Town Centre, Ripley Village, RHS Wisley, Cobham Sainsburys, Woking Town Centre 
and Tesco Brooklands.  
 
National Highways and Surrey County Council have subsequently met with the petitioners on 
two occasions (27th October 2023 and 15th February 2024) to discuss the consultation process 
and the reasons for the left turn only out of Seven Hills Road in terms of both road safety and 
capacity. As a result of these meetings National Highways are investigating how late in the M25 
Junction 10 delivery programme the left turn only could be implemented to allow other parts of 
the M25 Junction 10 scheme to be completed and how they would impact on the A245/B365 
Seven Hills Road junction under current conditions. 
 
4 The views of the Secretary of State 

 
The M25 Junction 10 A3 Wisley Interchange scheme has required a Development Consent 
Order to progress, this is a legal document and to obtain this National Highways has had to 
undertake consultations and submit the scheme to an examination in Public by the Planning 
Inspectorate who then produced its recommendation to the Secretary of State for Transport to 
determine whether the scheme as presented should progress. In May 2022 the Secretary of 
State subsequently confirmed that the scheme should progress including works on Surrey 
County Council’s road network including the A245 and at the Seven Hills Road junction. 
 
As the left turn only at the Seven Hills Road North junction forms part of the M25 Junction 10 
project and has passed through the DCO process it is now part of the DCO legal documentation 
approved by the Secretary of State. Therefore, it would be the Secretary of State’s decision as 
to whether any amendments to the DCO legal documents, including the left turn only, could be 
made and not Surrey County Council’s.   
 
It is understood that the petitioners have written to the Secretary of State for Transport 
regarding the left turn only from Seven Hills Road North. The Secretary of State has responded 
(in December 2023) that the scheme has followed due process and that decisions such as 
these are not taken lightly and that extensive analysis is completed by National Highways 
during the development of any scheme to ensure that the proposed solution represents the best 
option. The Secretary of State also confirmed that there was a robust process in place to ensure 
that the consideration of these types of projects is appropriate and that during the DCO 
application National highways will have evidenced the need for the scheme, the impacts, 
benefits and that they have sufficiently consulted on their proposals. 
 
Therefore, into account the need for the left turn only for both road safety and 
capacity/congestion reasons it is not anticipated that the Secretary of State will come to a 
different decision regarding the provision of the left turn only from Seven Hills Road North. 

 
  

Page 10



5 Summary  
 

Without the National Highways M25 DCO scheme the changes at the A245/B365 Seven Hills 
Road junction would not have been required.  The effect of the M25 Junction 10 A3 Wisley 
Interchange project is that drivers exiting the M25 will arrive at the Seven Hills Road junction 
sooner than they do now.  Given that traffic frequently queues back down the A3 off-slip onto the 
mainline carriageway, causing a safety hazard, the chance of the queueing becoming worse 
meant that the Seven Hills Road junction needed improving as part of the overall scheme.  
 
While it is acknowledged under the current proposals some drivers would be disadvantaged by 
needing to travel further and use the Painshill junction to perform a U-turn, many would realise a 
benefit.  The proposals also permit improved access to and from Feltonfleet school and the 
provision of walking and cycling facilities. Without providing the left turn only scheme it is not 
possible to introduce pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities at this junction, including to and 
from Feltonfleet school. 
 
The decision for the M25 Junction 10 A3 Wisley Interchange project lay with the Secretary of 
State for Transport who determined the scheme should progress, including the changes at 
A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction and the Secretary of State has reiterated this in his recent 
correspondence with the petitioner.  
 
For the reasons stated above Surrey County Council consider that the proposed changes to the 
A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction address and mitigate the impacts arising from the 
National Highways M25 Junction 10 DCO approved project.  
 
6 Next Steps 
 
6.1 Left Turn Only 
 
Following the meetings with the petitioners National Highways are investigating how late in the 
M25 Junction 10 delivery programme the left turn only could be implemented to allow other 
parts of the M25 Junction 10 scheme to be completed and how they would impact on the 
A245/B365 Seven Hills Road junction under current conditions. 
 
National Highways would then still continue to then construct the left turn only as it is part of the 
M25 Junction 10 Legal DCO.  
 
However, once the National Highways M25 Junction 10 scheme is complete and the provisions 
of their legal requirements under the DCO are met National Highways will “hand over” the 
completed works on Surrey County Council’s road network back to the County Council to 
maintain.  
 
Surrey County Council can then monitor the operation of the left turn only at the A245/B365 
Seven Hills Traffic signals and traffic flows/speeds along the A245 to assess whether any 
changes are justified taking account of how road users may have adapted to the new road 
layout. 
 
6.2 Pedestrian/Cycle Crossing 
 
National Highways consultants are currently designing the crossing and therefore a decision is 
sought whether to progress with the crossing which can be provided with the left turn only which 
provides the capacity for the crossing or whether to not provide the crossing and allow the 
higher capacity for vehicles with just the left turn only. 
 
Matt Furniss 
Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Petition: Stop the closure of the Right turn at the bottom of 7 Hills Road in Cobham

